
ARIZONA STATE SENATE 
45TH LEGISLATURE 

FIRST REGULAR SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 
JUDICIARY 

 
DATE:  January 23, 2001 TIME:   1:30 p.m. ROOM: SHR 1 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Richardson VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Smith 

  
ANALYST: Sheryl Rabin COMMITTEE  

SECRETARY:   
Tracey Moulton 

 
INTERNS: Lou Bacchi; Joseph Martin Belson, Jr. 

 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Aguirre X   SB 1002 HELD 
Senator Bee X   SB 1009 HELD 
Senator Bundgaard X   SB 1011 DPA/SE 
Senator Burns X   SB 1014 HELD 
Senator Cummiskey X   SB 1035 DPA 
Senator Rios X   SB 1076 DP 
Senator Smith, Vice Chairman X   SB 1083 DP 
Senator Richardson, Chairman X   SB 1084 DPA 
    SB 1089 DPA 
    SB 1090 DP 
    SB 1096 HELD 
    SB 1105 HELD 
    SB 1119 HELD 
    SB 1137 DP 

 
 

GOVERNOR’S APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
 

Name Position Recommendation 

Stephanie Cadiff Sklar Member, Commission on Trial 
Court Appointments 

Postponed 

 
 
 
 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 2  January 23, 2001 

Tape 1, Side A 
 
Chairman Richardson called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. and attendance was noted.  For 
additional attendees, see Sign-in Sheet (Attachment A). 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Senator Richardson announced that there were no minutes available for approval. 
 
EXECUTIVE NOMINATIONS 
 
Stephanie Cadiff Sklar – Member, Commission on Trial Court Appointments – POSTPONED 
 
Senator Richardson announced that because Ms. Sklar was unable to attend the meeting, her 
appointment would be postponed until the next meeting. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following bills would be held until next week: 
 
S.B. 1002 – bail bonds – HELD 
 
S.B. 1009 – juror pay – HELD 
 
S.B. 1014 – sexual offenses; archaic laws; repeal. – HELD 
 
S.B. 1096 – hazing; education institutions; prohibition – HELD 
 
S.B. 1035 – public accommodations; equal access guarantee – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Senator Richardson remarked that the amendment was brought to her four minutes late and with 
the Committee’s indulgence, she waived the rule. 
 
Senator Bennett, bill sponsor, explained that S.B. 1035 was before the Judiciary Committee last 
week and it was held so that an amendment could be drafted. He stated that the Aguirre 
amendment removes the reference to clothing so that businesses would be allowed to disallow  
“colors” being worn in their establishments to prevent conflicts. 
 
Senator Bennett commented that the primary concern expressed by some individuals in opposition 
to the bill was Section 3, A3, protecting individual’s ability to wear their clothing and insignias or 
“colors” into business establishments.  He noted that subsection is eliminated entirely by the 
amendment.  He stated the damages sections of the bill, punitive and other damages, was a 
concern and the amendment eliminates those damages and provides for injunctive relief and a 
$300 civil penalty.  Additionally, the amendment ensures that the use of alcohol, drugs, or 
behaving in a boisterous manner are not protected. The amendment states that the owner of the 
establishment can designate reasonable parking for motorcycles and does not limit the functions of 
government officers, officials, agencies or departments from doing their job, mainly law 
enforcement.  
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 3  January 23, 2001 

Senator Bennett stated that this addresses the majority of the concerns voiced in the Committee 
last week.  He stated that any further concerns might be addressed when the bill is heard in the 
Transportation Committee. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Eric 
Edwards, Lieutenant, Arizona Association of Chiefs of Police; Eleanor Eisenburg, Executive 
Director, Arizona Civil Liberties Union; Roger Hurm, Modified Motorcycle Association of 
Arizona; and Bobbie Hartmann, American Brotherhood Aimed Towards Education. 
 
Deborah Butitta, Arizona Confederation of Motorcycle Clubs, testified in opposition to the bill 
and remarked that Arizona is the number one place to tour on a motorcycle.  She remarked that 
Arizona needs to be brought into the twenty-first century with regard to foreign tourism.  She stated 
that many motorcyclists come to Arizona, rent motorcycles, tour the scenic roadways and provide 
revenue to many businesses in addition to the lodging and restaurant industries. 
 
 Senator Smith moved S.B. 1035 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.   
 

Senator Aguirre moved the Aguirre amendment dated 1/23/01, 10:03 a.m. be adopted. 
The motion CARRIED by a voice vote (Attachment B). 
 
Senator Smith moved S.B. 1035 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation. The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-1-0 (Attachment 1). 
 

S.B. 1076 – newborn infants; safe haven; immunity. – DO PASS 
 
Barbara Guenther, Research Analyst, explained S.B. 1076 exempts a person who leaves a 
newborn with a specified provider from criminal child abuse if the infant is unharmed and grants 
anonymity. Requires a specified provider to accept surrendered newborn infants and prohibits 
them from requiring the parent or agent to answer questions.  She stated that the bill requires the 
provider to make a referral to Child Protective Services (CPS).  She commented that under current 
statute, CPS is required to provide a medical examination. 
 
Senator Smith asked if the identity of the father of the child is required for financial responsibility.  
Ms. Guenther stated that there is no provision in the bill to provide any identifying information of 
the potential father. 
 
Senator Solomon, bill sponsor, stated the reason this bill was introduced is because nationally, 
there are hundreds of babies who are abandoned in inappropriate places and left to die.  She 
stated it was the intent of those who drafted the bill to save babies’ lives, even if it is only one baby.  
She remarked that there are some questions that have been raised with regard to whether this is 
legalizing or encouraging abandonment and irresponsibility.  She remarked that even if the history 
of the baby cannot be obtained, the baby will still be alive. 
 
Senator Solomon remarked that when a girl is so desperate that she believes she must dispose of 
her baby, it is not very likely that she is going to seek out a place that would be safe haven for her 
child where there would be questions asked. She noted that even if the mother were assured of 
the information being held confidential, she probably would not trust the situation.  It is for that 
reason that the specified provider is prohibited from requiring the parent or agent to answer 
questions. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 4  January 23, 2001 

Senator Solomon stated that when the bill was amended in the Family Services Committee, the 
word “agent” was removed, and “place a reporting requirement” was added. 
 
Senator Solomon reiterated that the purpose of the bill is not to encourage abandonment or 
irresponsibility, but rather to afford a baby the opportunity of living.  She commented that it would 
be better to have a baby with no lineage than a dead baby in a dumpster. 
 
Senator Smith expressed his concerned with the fathers of these children not being held 
accountable for their financial responsibility towards the children.  Senator Solomon replied that it 
is the same responsibility that the father currently has in any child abandonment case. CPS would 
follow the same set of laws that are in statute currently.  She stated there is no difference in how 
they would be treated if they could be identified. She remarked that if the father was aware of the 
child’s birth and wanted to claim the baby, he would be given all the rights that are currently in 
statute. 
 
Senator Burns commented that she applauds the intent of the bill and agreed that a way to prevent 
these babies from being injured or killed is needed.  She remarked that she had heard the 
comment that this would increase the number of abandonments.  She stated that no one could be 
sure that would happen.  She remarked that she is concerned with how this would work.  Senator 
Burns questioned how much time the mother would spend in the safe haven from the time she 
enters the facility until she leaves.  Senator Solomon remarked that it would depend on the 
situation and the individuals involved.   She noted that under this bill, the mother would be able to 
drop the baby off without saying a word and would not be required to answer any questions. 
 
Senator Burns stated that she is worried about an abused child being dropped off, the abuse being 
undetected, and there being no way to assess what had happened to the child, or to find the 
mother, let alone make the father take financial responsibility for the child.  Senator Solomon 
stated that she appreciated Senator Burns concerns and remarked that type of situation has not 
been an issue in other states.  She stated that the bill specifically states that the child needs to be 
an unharmed newborn and noted the provider is under the same statutory guidelines that currently 
exist and must contact CPS for an immediate medical exam.  She remarked that she did not have 
the answers to all the possible hypothetical scenarios that could occur.  She reiterated that in the 
other states that have introduced or adopted similar legislation, they have not had this type of 
situation, their programs are apparently working and babies are being kept from being aborted and 
left for dead in dumpsters. 
 
Senator Burns agreed that having the babies brought to a safe haven versus being left somewhere 
to die is an obvious choice.  She remarked that she does not want a parent that has abused a child 
to be immune from liability either.  Senator Solomon stated that is her wish as well.  She 
commented that this legislation has been successful in other states and abuse has not been an 
issue.  She remarked that this legislation has saved lives in those states, which is the objective that 
she has for Arizona as well. 
 
Senator Solomon commented that if someone is going to abuse a baby, the probability is that they 
are not going to bring the baby to a safe haven in the first 72 hours, they will simply abuse and do 
harm to the child.  This bill is addressed to desperate women who see no other options available to 
them and gives them the opportunity to place their babies in a safe environment. 
 
Ms. Guenther stated that there is a clarifying amendment that was offered in Family Services that 
specified that this section does not preclude prosecution for any other offense other than leaving 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 5  January 23, 2001 

the newborn at the safe haven.  She stated that if it were determined that the child was injured and 
if they were able to ascertain the identity of the mother, there is prosecution available for this.  She 
stated that it is only the act of dropping off the infant that is immune. 
 
Senator Burns remarked that she understood and had read that in the bill.  She commented that 
she understands the intent of the bill as well and noted that she was trying to make sure that this 
bill would not create another problem.  She reiterated her concerns regarding obtaining the 
necessary information to be able to prosecute the parents of abused children if they are left at a 
safe haven. 
 
Senator Richardson remarked that when babies are abandoned in dumpsters or other 
inappropriate places the authorities are at a loss of knowing the identities of the mothers.  She 
remarked that she wished that the Legislature was able to legislate morality. 
 
Senator Solomon remarked that Senator Burns has a valid question and in discussing the situation 
with Glenn Davis, General Counsel to Democratic Caucus, he reminded her that there is an 
answer to those concerns.  Senator Solomon stated that under current law, if an abused baby is 
dropped off at a hospital, there is no immunity.  The same statute would apply to this situation as 
well. 
 
Senator Rios asked why the 72-hour age was chosen. Senator Solomon stated that other states’ 
legislation uses this number.  She remarked that in other states, the ages range from 48 hours to 
two months of age.  She stated that when the group crafted the bill, it was determined that no 
longer than 72-hours was an appropriate length of time.  Senator Solomon commented that the 
pediatricians that helped craft the bill stated that it is very difficult to tell the age of an infant under 
72-hours old. 
 
In response to Senator Rios, Senator Solomon stated that it would be up to the prosecutor if a 
woman who dropped off her infant, older than the 72 hours age restriction, would be charged with 
abandonment.  She remarked that if the woman wants to divest herself of her child after seven 
days, rather than abandon, she can always take the infant to an adoption agency or to a crisis 
nursery. She noted that if the mother dropped her infant at a safe haven, current statutes would 
apply. 
 
Senator Rios stated that he had read that Pima County wanted to develop safe havens without the 
change in Arizona Revised Statute.  Senator Solomon responded that the Pima County Attorney is 
doing this and from all reports the program is working well. 
 
Senator Rios remarked that the bill specifically states that the infant can be dropped off at a safe 
haven if the parent did not express an intent to return for the child.  He asked if the County would 
try to locate the mother.  Senator Solomon stated that if the mother, after a period of time, decides 
that she wants to parent the child, an effort would be made to unify the family and provide the 
mother with the services she would need to parent her child if at all possible. 
 
Senator Smith opined that both born and unborn babies should be protected and thought it was 
wishful thinking to say that information does not have to be given, but that prosecuting abusive 
parents is possible. 
 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 6  January 23, 2001 

Frances Ryley, representing herself, with input from other organizations, testified in 
opposition to the bill and opined that there is no need for the bill.  She commented that the bill is 
supposed to reach and help desperate women, but noted that there are already programs in place, 
they only need to be published for the public to be aware of and utilize them.  She remarked that 
any woman who is so desperate to abandon her baby could leave her child at a hospital, fire 
station or police station.   
 
Ms. Ryley opined that the bill is not going to solve a problem, but will create many problems 
because of the lack of clarity, implementation of programs and practicality of the bill.  She opined 
that the bill also sets back adoption practices.  She questioned if the State was suggesting that it 
was creating a law to save the life of one baby or was it just opening the door to take away the 
rights of a newborn child and the rights of the parent.  For example, with this bill, the mother has to 
have a negative reasoning, meaning that she does not intend to come back for the child.  Ms. 
Ryley stated that is arbitrary and questioned, by what authority does the State grant itself the 
power to take a whole class of citizens away from their parents on the supposition that the children 
are going to be killed anyway.  She also questioned, what authority does the State have to say that 
it can wipe out the genetic history of the child. This practice will not allow the child to have a 
modicum of history about its social, personal or medical history forever, because the parents can 
be anonymous. 
 
Ms. Ryley expressed her concern that at one location the staff may be trained to give medical 
attention and in another location, the staff may not be able to provide that care.  She stated that in 
these situations the State is demanding the employees of the safe havens to act as an 
intermediary in a social experiment.  She remarked the amendments stipulate that an annual 
report will be done on the number of babies that enter into this program.  
 
Ms. Ryley stated that she relinquished a baby for adoption and is aware of the adoption laws work 
and commented that this bill will take away a lot of safe guards because it is not known how this 
program is going to actually work. 
 
Senator Cummiskey stated that on her speaker slip, Ms. Ryley noted that she was representing 
herself with input from other organizations.  He asked her to further explain what those 
organizations were.  Ms. Ryley commented that she has spoken with a lot of individuals who are in 
different national organizations with state chapters.  She stated that they include American 
Adoption Congress, Orphan Voyage, and Bastard Nation.  She explained that Bastard Nation is a 
young organization of adult adoptees who are working to have it recognized that adoptees are 
entitled to their genetic history.  
 
Senator Cummiskey asked what Ms. Ryley would have a woman in crisis do with her baby, other 
than abandoning the infant in an inappropriate place.  Ms. Ryley suggested that the State might do 
the following: explore existing programs and examine why they are not working, explore the 
psychology and the modes and methods of women who abandon their children to die, and 
evaluate why this program is not working in other states and not rush in with a model program. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Edwin 
Cook, Executive Director, Arizona Prosecuting Attorneys’ Advisory Council; and Shannon 
Slattery, Legislative Relations Coordinator, Maricopa County Public Defender’s Office.  
 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 7  January 23, 2001 

Mary Judge Ryan, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Pima County Attorney’s Office, testified in 
support of the bill and urged the Committee to support the bill.  She commented that her office 
supports a very limited, very narrow bill, which grants immunity to individuals who bring an 
unharmed baby within 72 hours after birth, to a safe haven provider.  She noted that they have 
attempted to be very specific as to who those providers will be. 
 
Ms. Ryan stated that this bill is a result of personal experience in Pima County.  She stated the 
Pima County Prosecutor’s office has prosecuted three cases or young women who have either 
allowed or caused the death of their newborn infants.  She stated the intent of this bill is to prevent 
these types of deaths by giving these very desperate women, often-young girls, an option to where 
they can take the babies to be in safe, nurturing environments.  Once the safe haven provider 
takes that baby, the provider is required to call DES and all of the protections of CPS then come 
into play.   
 
Ms. Ryan stated that in Pima County this program is in the process of being set up by granting 
immunity through the discretion of the County Attorney.  She stated that this program needs to be 
implemented through out the State to ensure that children throughout Arizona have the same 
protections. 
 
Senator Richardson commented that there was a study committee conducted throughout the 
summer where representatives from every faction were allowed to testify.  Ms. Ryan remarked that 
was correct and noted that there were health care providers, human service providers, 
prosecutors, law enforcement, DES and CPS were involved. 
 
Cathi Herrod, Director of Policy, Center for Arizona Policy, testified in support of the bill.  She 
commented that she would agree with Senator Smith’s comments.  She remarked that this 
problem exists when a society no longer values life inside the womb and at some point, no longer 
values life outside the womb as well.  She stated that her office opines that 28 years of legalized 
abortion is what leads to this type of problem. 
 
Ms. Herrod stated that the policy goal of the bill, to protect the life of one baby is worth it.  She 
commented that the office has concerns and would like to see them addressed as the bill moves 
through the process.  She remarked that her office would suggest that clarifying language can be 
added to the provision of asking, not requiring, the mother to answer any questions that the safe 
haven provider may ask. 
 
Ms. Herrod commented that locating a birth father is a concern of her office and noted that it is 
nearly impossible to do so if there is limited or no information given.  She stated that there is 
nothing in the bill that protects or will enable a birth father to even know if the child has been born.   
 
Ms. Herrod remarked that another concern is how the State is planning on reaching these women 
with the messages on pro-adoption, how they can legally terminate their rights 72 hours after birth, 
and how to take advantage of this bill, should it pass.  She noted more discussion on how to reach 
these women is needed. 
 
Eleanor Eisenburg, Executive Director, Arizona Civil Liberties Union, noted the concise and 
clear testimony of Senator Solomon and Mary Judge Ryan have allayed a good deal of their 
concerns and it is interesting to be in support of this bill along with the Center for Arizona Policy.   
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 8  January 23, 2001 

Ms. Eisenburg noted that the ACLU is also concerned with the termination of parental rights and 
the right of the mother to perhaps change her mind.  She commented that she is aware that 
Arizona Statutes 8106 and 8806 offer protections in this regard and the ACLU would urge that in 
implementation, all of the rights that both parents are entitled to are given when the child is left at a 
safe haven.  She stated that with assurance that 8106 and 8806 are not vitiated, the ACLU would 
endorse the bill. 
 

Senator Smith moved S.B. 1076 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  The 
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 6-2-0 (Attachment 2). 
 

Senator Burns, in explanation of her vote, commented that she uses a lot of criteria, as all the 
members do, to determine how she is going to vote on bills, and opined the first and best is do no 
harm.  She opined the goal of the bill is fabulous, but noted her concern that the bill may cause 
more harm than good, and voted no. 
 
Senator Smith commented that he voted no on the bill, and wanted to see what amendments may 
be added to the bill.  He reiterated his concern that leaving a child at a safe haven without the 
requirement to provide any information on its background would have a significant effect on the 
child as it grows older.  He stated that he did not see any reason that would prevent the mother 
from providing background and history of the child, if they are really concerned with giving that 
child a proper life.  
 
S.B. 1083 – appropriations; drug court funding – DO PASS 
 
Joseph Belson, Research Intern, explained S.B. 1083 appropriates over the biennium 
approximately $9 million from the state general fund to the superior court probation services 
program to fund adult and juvenile drug courts and adult driving under the influence (DUI) courts.  
 
George Diaz, Legislative Officer, Administrative Office of the Courts, Arizona Supreme 
Court, testified in support of the bill and distributed a handout entitled “Drug Court Facts” 
(Attachment C).  He explained that drug courts take drug offenders who would otherwise be in 
other parts of the criminal justice system and attempts to break them of their drug addiction with 
intensive treatment and supervision.  Where Proposition 200 allows, the court is able to use the 
threat of jail time to make offenders comply with prescribed treatment and conditions of probation.  
He noted the results have been phenomenal.    
 
Mr. Diaz stated that as of June 2000, over 1,000 drug free babies have been born from drug court 
participants nationwide.  He remarked that treatment for a child born addicted to drugs is at a 
minimum of $250,000 in the first few years of their lives and by the time that child reaches the age 
of 18, that expense can rise to $750,000.  As a side note, he stated that 73% of drug court 
participants are parents of minor children. 
 
Mr. Diaz remarked that in 1998 Arizona drug courts were responsible for 551 prison diversions.  
The estimated cost for those 551 inmates would have been $5 million.  After probation and 
treatment costs the net savings are still $2.5 million.  Most criminal justice system professionals 
estimate that over 50% of defendants convicted of drug possession will recidivate with a similar 
offense in two to three years.  In comparison, drug court programs are experiencing recidivism 
between 5 – 28% and for graduates, it is approximately 4%. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 9  January 23, 2001 

Mr. Diaz commented that the funds requested will replace federal drug funding that was meant as 
seed money in six counties, establish new drug courts in five counties, and appropriate $682,000 
per year for juvenile drug court.  While each county drug court has developed its own requests, 
there have been three uses for these funds, which have been counseling staff, urinalysis and 
residential treatment.  Mr. Diaz asked the Committee to hear testimony from Kirby Sexton, a 
graduate of the drug court program. 
 
Kirby Sexton, representing himself, testified in support of the bill and stated that the program 
has done a lot for him.  He remarked that through the mandatory counseling, he was able to 
address his addiction to crack cocaine, methamphetamine and marijuana, and also deal with 
childhood issues of abuse.  He stated that he is currently back in school, after dropping out of high 
school in the ninth grade due to his drug addiction.  He currently has a job and is a productive 
member of society and feels very good about what he has accomplished. 
 
Senator Richardson expressed her appreciation of Mr. Sexton’s testimony and the courage it took 
to come and speak to the Committee.  She commented that the Committee is always happy to 
hear about success stories such as his. 
 
Mr. Diaz noted that Mr. Sexton took the day off of work to come and testify at the meeting and 
expressed his gratitude to Mr. Sexton for appearing. 
 
Senator Burns asked what kinds of programs are within the community punishment program.  Mr. 
Diaz commented that the funding that this bill is requesting is specifically for drug courts. 
 
Edward Ballinger, Associate Presiding Criminal Judge for Maricopa County, Current Drug 
Court Judge, explained the community punishment program has drug components, separate from 
drug court.  It is designed for people that are believed to be heading for prison, treatment has not 
worked and a different set of criteria is used.   
 
Judge Ballinger explained that drug court is set up in connection with the Proposition 200 directive 
with first and second time convicted offenders, with a wide variety of treatment programs which 
include 12 step programs, support meetings, testing, mandatory random testing and other 
assignments determined by the judge.  He noted that in some cases he has had offenders that are 
not getting with the program and he has assigned writing assignments, community service 
provisions or spending the weekend with Sheriff Joe Arpaio.  Judge Ballinger commented that 
there are a number of things that the drug court tries to use to try and get these offenders a period 
of eighteen months to three years where they are substance free.  
 
Judge Ballinger remarked that prior to his current position, he was a civil practitioner and never 
had any involvement with the criminal system.  He opined that 90-95% of crime is substance 
related, which is based on his experience in the drug court system.   
 
Judge Ballinger commented that this program does work and the results actually save money.  He 
commented that the cost of incarceration is considerably more than drug court.  He invited the 
members to visit the drug courts to witness them and suggested that they come on a day when a 
graduate is present. 
 
Judge Ballinger that this program benefits everyone by taking offenders out of the problem, into the 
solution and at the same time saves millions of dollars. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 10  January 23, 2001 

Senator Smith commented that he has visited a couple of the drug courts and attended some of 
the graduations.  He remarked that the drug court program is not easy and the judges are 
demanding.  He opined that one of marks of its success is the involvement of the parents.  He 
stated that he understands why the program is so successful and stated that he supports the 
program 100%. 
 
Tape 1, Side B 
 
Senator Rios commended Mr. Sexton on his hard work and success in the drug court program, 
and wished him continued success.  He remarked that he is in support of the program, but noted 
his understanding was that first and second time offenders could not be incarcerated, and 
therefore the program did not have any “teeth,” which concerns him.   
 
Judge Ballinger remarked that with Proposition 200, there is a dual tract, first time offenders may 
not receive, as a condition of probation, any jail sentence but second offenders can receive jail 
time as a condition of their probation.  He commented that he deals with second offenders in his 
court and that each of the offenders has a deferred jail term that he uses in an effective manner.  
He explained that he tries to do everything that he can, because the drug court program is a 
support program, to encourage the offenders to comply.  He noted that if the offender does not 
want to get with the program, that individual will spend a weekend or a week in a holding tank or 
tent city, be tested regularly, and be made to accept responsibility.   
 
Judge Ballinger remarked that he has discussed first time offenders and the limits to what can be 
done with Commissioner McNally and the Presiding Judge and all agree with his interpretation.  He 
stated that with first offenders, although they cannot be sentenced to jail as a condition of 
probation, once they have entered into the drug court program and refuse to obey court ordered 
drug testing, they can be held in contempt.  The offender can be incarcerated for the drug testing, 
which can take approximately one week.  Judge Ballinger commented that this solution has not 
been implemented yet due to a study regarding whether drug courts can be effective merely with 
positive reinforcements.  
 
In response to Senator Burns, Judge Ballinger commented that the way the statute is written, if a 
first offender violates their probation, they cannot be given jail time.  The only time that changes is 
in the outline he testified to earlier.   
 
Senator Burns asked if the drug court program is part of the community punishment program.  
Judge Ballinger remarked that it is not.  He commented that when there is an individual that is 
convicted of a non-drug offense, but a significant drug problem can be seen, the judge can 
establish as part of their probation, enrolling in the drug treatment community punishment program 
activities.   
 
Shannon Slattery, Legislative Relations Coordinator, Maricopa County Public Defender’s 
Office, testified in support of the bill and noted that she recently came off a seven month rotation 
as an early disposition court and drug court attorney with tract two participants.  She commented 
that she has first hand experience with the programs and knows that they work. 
 
In regard to first time drug offenders and jail time sentencing, Ms. Slattery stated that the Judge 
has the option to terminate people in drug court back to standard probation.   When this is done, 
the participants will no longer enjoy the same benefits or have the program options, to shorten their 
length of probation, that they would have in drug court.  She noted that for many first time 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 11  January 23, 2001 

offenders, that is enough incentive to comply with drug court.  She commented that first time 
offender cases have forced the judges, prosecutors, and defense attorneys to become creative in 
sanctions and solutions to these problems.  In a lot of these cases, life skill issues, such as time 
management, money management, and how to deal with their children have never been learned.   
She commented the probation department has been extraordinary in incorporating some of these 
strategies into their programming with these clients.  She commented that skill-teaching 
assignments act as sanctions but additionally teach participants along with addressing the 
underlying drug addiction to become better equipped to deal with the addictive structure overall. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Diane 
Sikokis, Government Relations Director, Maricopa County Board of Supervisors; Joseph 
Easton, Program Manager Legislation & Policy, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission; and 
Alan Ecker, Program Associate, County Supervisors Association.  
 

Senator Smith moved S.B. 1083 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  The 
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 8-0-0 (Attachment 3). 

 
S.B. 1084 – domestic violence and protection orders – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Sheryl Rabin, Research Analyst, explained S.B. 1084 eliminates filing and appeal fees 
associated with domestic violence orders of protection and injunctions against harassment, and 
changes requirements for registering these orders. She stated the bill clarifies the law to represent 
the current practice by which orders and injunctions are registered by the Sheriff and makes the 
knowing refusal to yield the use of a telephone to another person in an emergency a class one 
misdemeanor.  S.B. 1084 came from the recommendation of the Committee on the Impact of 
Domestic Violence and the Courts (CIDVC). 
 
Elizabeth Finn, Phoenix Municipal Court Judge, Arizona Supreme Court (AOC), testified in 
support of the bill and commented that the figure of $190,000 for filing fees listed in the fact sheet 
supplied by AOC is incorrect.  She noted the estimated amount is $100,000 for filing fees. 
 
Judge Finn stated that the bill has the support of the clerks and noted that most courts and clerks 
opine that the  $5 filing fee is not noteworthy.  She commented that the intent of the bill is to protect 
the victims with the registration of the orders with the Sheriff so that law enforcement can call and 
verify the order.  She remarked that there are varying practices of the sheriffs around the state and 
the goal is to have the document registered. 
 
Senator Smith questioned what problem the bill would solve.  Judge Finn stated the bill eliminates 
the filing fee which some victims for various reasons cannot pay.  She stated most courts are 
waiving 50% of the filing fees at this point, and therefore it is opined that the fees should be 
eliminated and the service provided for those individuals that have the need for the protection.  
She remarked that CIDVC, the Maricopa County Sheriff and the Maricopa County Attorney have 
been discussing the registration of documents.  She noted that this discussion has been on going 
and the question has been, “should the documents be evaluated and rejected if necessary or is it a 
managerial function and they should be put on record.”  The bill clarifies this so the sheriff’s office 
will have, on record, the documents and any officer can call to verify them. 
 
Senator Smith questioned if there was any opposition to the bill.  Judge Finn replied that she was 
not aware of any. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 12  January 23, 2001 

 Senator Smith moved that S.B. 1084 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 

Senator Smith moved the Richardson amendment dated 1/22/01, 10:41 a.m. be 
adopted. 
 

Ms. Rabin explained the Richardson amendment would eliminate the section of the bill that relates 
to the misdemeanor charge for refusing to yield the use of a telephone in an emergency. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Danae 
Dotolo, Public Policy Advocate, Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence; Joseph 
Easton, Program Manager Legislation & Policy, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission; and 
David Sands, Legislative Officer, Administrative Office of the Courts. 
 

The motion to adopt the Richardson amendment dated 1/22/01, 10:41 a.m. Carried by 
voice vote (Attachment D). 
 
Senator Smith moved S.B. 1084 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-0-1 (Attachment 4). 
 

S.B. 1119 – domestic violence and sexual assault – HELD 
 
Sheryl Rabin, Research Analyst, explained the Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault State 
Plan Task Force, which was established last year, has the responsibility of developing a single 
statewide plan to coordinate resources used to address domestic violence and sexual assault.   
 
Ms. Rabin stated that because several Task Force members were not appointed until October of 
2000, the Task Force was unable to complete its plan by the December 2000 deadline and is 
therefore seeking this bill in order to extend the reporting deadline two years, until December 2002. 
 
Ms. Rabin remarked that the bill also incorporates additional changes recommended by the Task 
Force, including legislative direction allowing the Task Force to create two separate plans and 
expanding the information required in each plan.  She noted the bill also contains an appropriation 
of $500,000 from the State General Fund to the Governor’s Office to hire an independent 
contractor and two full time employees to assist the Task Force. 
 
 Senator Smith moved S.B. 1119 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
Senator Burns questioned how many other Task Forces receive $500,000.  Ms Rabin noted that 
she did not have that information and would provide if necessary.  She stated that there may be 
someone available to testify to answer this question. 
 

Senator Smith moved the Richardson amendment dated 1/22/01, 3:20 p.m. be 
adopted. 

 
Ms. Rabin explained the Richardson amendment would add two prosecutors to the Task Force, 
one appointed by the Speaker of the House from a city with fewer than 1.2 million residents and 
one prosecuting attorney appointed by the President of the Senate from a city with 1.2 million or 
more residents. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 13  January 23, 2001 

Senator Smith questioned what the purpose and job descriptions were for the prosecutors for the 
Task Force. 
  
Don Taylor, Assistant City Prosecutor with the City of Phoenix, testified in support of the 
amendment.  He stated that a significant portion of the domestic violence that occurs within the 
State occurs at the misdemeanor level.  He remarked that city prosecutors do a significant portion 
of that.  He stated that there is currently prosecutor representation on the Task Force but at the 
county prosecutor level. 
 
Senator Smith questioned why are the prosecutors needed.  Mr. Taylor stated that they are 
needed because a significant portion of misdemeanors are done on a city level.  He remarked that 
there may be different interests  involved that those that are done on the county level where they 
are dealing with felony offenses.   
 
Senator Smith commented that it looks like the Task Force is growing and growing.  He asked how 
many people were on the Task Force.  Mr. Taylor remarked that there are twenty members 
currently.  Senator Smith commented that although he understands what the Task Force is trying 
to accomplish, his concern is of the Task Force growing even more. 
 
Without objection, Senator Richardson announced that the bill would be held to address the 
appropriation to the bill.  
 
S.B. 1105 – sudden infant death syndrome; protocols – HELD 
 
Senator Richardson announced S.B. 1105 was being held in the Health Committee for two weeks 
and would be held in the Judiciary Committee until next week. 
 
S.B. 1089 – alcohol offenses; 0.08 alcohol concentration… - DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Jim Keane, Research Analyst, explained S.B. 1089 lowers the legal level of intoxication 
allowable while operating a motor vehicle from 0.10 to 0.08 blood alcohol concentration (BAC).   
He remarked that the bill passed out of the Government Committee with a conforming change 
amendment and in addition there is an amendment being offered for this Committee’s 
consideration. 
 
 Senator Smith moved S.B. 1089 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
Senator Smith questioned if the bill was in response to a federal highway-funding requirement.  Mr. 
Keane replied that there is a federal requirement.  He stated that funds would be withheld until this 
bill is passed, but noted that he did not know if that is the primary reason for the bill. 
 
Senator Richardson remarked that federal highway funds would be withheld by the year 2004, if 
this bill was not implemented. 
 
Senator Smith expressed his resentment of the federal government mandating to States to comply 
with its wishes.  He opined that this is not a federal issue and therefore the federal government 
should not be involved.  He opined that the use of blackmail, with refusing federal funds, is a 
situation that is intolerable and he stated that he hopes that this situation will change. 
 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 14  January 23, 2001 

Senator Nichols, bill sponsor, stated that he represents District 13 and was present to speak in 
support of the bill.  He stated that this bill has been before the Legislature many times in the last 
eight years and noted that there are similar bills being offered this session. 
 
Senator Nichols explained that S.B. 1089 takes the current BAC of .10 and converts it to .08. He 
noted that the bill responds to federal highway legislation, which has put a premium on States that 
are responsive to the BAC change, and if by the year 2004 this has not been accomplished, States 
will begin to lose highway funds.  He noted that this could be a substantial loss.  He stated that he 
was not present to plead for highway funds, rather, he was present to plead for a .08 BAC for its 
own merits.  Senator Nichols remarked that a number of other states have lowered the BAC to the 
.08 standard.  This standard has been adopted, in part, because it is considered to be one of the 
most effective ways of catching drivers who are driving under the influence (DUI) at an early stage, 
rather than waiting until they are more intoxicated.   
 
Senator Nichols stated that it has also been said there is no real evidence that .08 is an important 
threshold to achieve.  He stated that often, people site evidence regarding fatal accidents.  He 
stated that there is an abundance of evidence supporting the contention that the number of 
crashes involving fatally injured drivers with a BAC of .08 was significantly decreased by 16% on 
average, in states where the BAC had been lowered.  He remarked that a comparison study has 
been done on states that reduced the BAC compared to states that did not. There was a significant 
decrease in BAC related crashes in four out of five states as a result of similar legislation.  Senator 
Nichols stated that in his role as a physician, he consulted the American Medical Association to 
find out whether there was impairment at a BAC of .08. He discovered that impairment begins at 
.05 and at .08 there is serious impairment.  
 
In conclusion, Senator Nichols noted that many organizations support the .08 standard including 
law enforcement and the medical community.  He noted the only industry not in favor of a .08 BAC 
is the hospitality industry, which is concerned that their business would be affected. He stated 
there is evidence where .08 BAC has been adopted that there has not been a loss of business.  He 
commented that the State is going to inevitably change the BAC to .08. The only question is when 
it will do it.  He urged the Committee to support the bill and join the other 19 states that already 
have this statute because it is the right thing to do and not because the State wants the federal 
highway funds. 
 
Senator Nichols remarked that there would be an amendment offered by the Chairman for a 
delayed implementation and stated that he is in support of the amendment.  He asked that the bill 
be sent forward to demonstrate the Legislature’s concern about the health and safety of the public. 
 
Steve Tyrrell, Executive Director, MADD, testified in support of the bill and stated that the first 
way he can answer some of the members questions is by a comparison of Arizona to New Mexico.  
He stated both states have similar land size, topography and demographics.  He stated in the last 
few years New Mexico has linked DUI laws and regulations into a comprehensive system, much 
the same as Arizona has done.  New Mexico has adopted a .08 standard and has had fewer 
crashes by alcohol impaired drivers than Arizona has.  He noted that New Mexico’s degree of 
improvement in this area has been approximately 15%, while in Arizona there has been a 9% 
reduction in alcohol related crashes.  He stated in states where the .08 BAC has been enacted, on 
average, there is a 7.8 – 8% reduction in the number of drivers who are driving under the influence 
of alcohol and creating crashes.  That also relates to a reduction of victims. In the 2000 study of 
Tippins and Bows, it was reported that there was a reduction of approximately 7.8% of drivers with 
.10 BAC levels.  This study looked at every state and compared each state’s demographics; 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 15  January 23, 2001 

increased populations and vehicle miles traveled, and reported that in the last ten to fifteen years 
drinking and driving has been reduced.  He stated the study demonstrates that three types of laws 
have had an impact on drinking and driving: administrative license revocation laws, seatbelt laws, 
and .08 BAC laws.    
 
Mr. Tyrrell remarked that the Philmore 1994 study reviewed specific parts of driving that are 
affected by drinking alcohol. The difficulty of keeping a hand or finger in a fixed reference point was 
tested.  He stated it was studied through a simulator what would happen if a person drank alcohol, 
got behind the wheel, and tried to maintain a fixed reference point, like driving a car. It was found 
that impairment starts gradually at approximately .054 and significant impairment is at .08.  He 
noted that the most recent NHSTA Study reviewed components of driving, such as reaction time, 
lane deviation, correct responses to other stimuli, and how many collisions would occur. It was 
discovered that reaction time was impaired 7 – 10%, that 53% of the test group could not control 
their vehicle in the correct lane as they approached the .06 and .10 range and 225% was the 
increase rate of traffic collisions.  He remarked that two conclusions can be reached from this data. 
The first is that the law works and the second, the specific parts of controlling a car are definitely 
affected with BAC between .06 and .10.   
 
Mr. Tyrrell stated that the myth that a person who has one drink will get a DUI violation under this 
bill is not true.  He noted from his experience of twenty years of working in the behavioral health 
field, a female weighing one hundred pounds, ingesting two drinks in one hour or a male weighing 
one hundred eighty-five pounds, drinking two drinks in one hour would reach a BAC between .03 - 
.05.  He stated that it would take drinking five drinks in one hour or having one drink every ten to 
twelve minutes in one hour to reach a .08 level. 
 
David Alexander, III, representing himself, testified in opposition to the bill and expressed his 
concern with the increasing criminalization of the population of the United States.  He estimated 
that by the year 2010 approximately 60 million Americans are going to be charged and convicted 
criminals and it is highly likely that more than half of those will be for drug and alcohol related 
offenses.  He expressed his concern and sympathy for the victims of drunk drivers but noted his 
concern at the societal cost of over reacting to a problem.  He opined that the .08 BAC reduction is 
a solution hunting for a problem. 
   
Mr. Alexander remarked that he is unfamiliar with the studies quoted by the presenters that are in 
favor of the bill and distributed a memo dated January 22, 2001, entitled “To the Members of the 
Senate Government Committee” (Attachment C).  He quoted statistics from a study published by 
the “U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Statistics Special 
Report, DWI Offenders Under Correctional Supervision”, which was published in June of 1999.   
He quoted that “prior to 1983, no state had a law setting the BAC at .08.  In 1983 Oregon and Utah 
enacted .08 BAC illegal per se laws, which made it illegal in it of itself, to drive with a BAC 
measured at or above .08”.  He stated that this is one of the issues of passing this kind of proposal.  
He remarked that discretion is no longer present to a prosecutor or a judge and noted that peace 
officers will understand that the Legislature has placed all the discretion at their level.  He noted 
that by the end of 1991 three additional states had adopted this law, and by the end of 1997 fifteen 
states had a legal BAC limit of .08.  In 1997, the remaining states had a BAC limit of .10.   
 
Mr. Alexander made the following comparisons of .08 and .10 levels: in 1997 the average DUI 
arrest rate for those states with BAC of .08 was 952 per 100,000 drivers. He remarked that in the 
states with a .10 BAC, the arrest rate was 829 per 100,000 drivers.  He stated that he did not know 
of a study that would belie the Justice Departments’ study indicating that a reduction in the BAC 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 16  January 23, 2001 

produces fewer prosecutions.  He stated that the Department of Justice opines that a reduction in 
BAC level produces more prosecutions. 
 
Terry Smalley, Arizona Licensed Beverage Association, remarked that although it appears that 
the bill may be passed out of this Committee, his Association is in favor of delaying that date as 
long as possible to ensure that all the necessary positions are filled within the industry. 
 
Mr. Smalley commented that although his Association does not want to be mandated by the 
federal government it does not want the State to lose highway funds. 
 
Senator Smith commented that this bill has been heard many times and he has heard that the 
majority of DUI tickets are issued to people who have BACs greater than .15.  He asked Mr. 
Smalley if that was correct. Mr. Smalley commented that he had heard similar statements and 
noted that he would investigate this issue for the Committee. 
 
Senator Smith remarked that it is amazing how many people lose their jobs because of previous 
DUI convictions and opined that the current DUI laws are being enforced as the laws are presently 
written.  He stated that multiple DUI offenders have only one listed on their records.  He opined 
that this might be due to the technology that has not been installed. 
 
Senator Aguirre commented that the federal government has given the State until 2004 to 
establish a .08 BAC law.  She noted her concern with the possibility that the federal government 
may, at some future date, rescind the mandate.  She remarked that the State may be “jumping the 
gun” with implementing this into law.  Mr. Smalley remarked that the federal government has 
mandated many issues with regard to transportation industry.  He commented that the government 
usually does not rescind on these issues. 
 
 Senator Smith moved S.B. 1089 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 

Senator Smith moved the Richardson amendment dated 1/19/01, 2:05 P.M. be 
adopted. 

 
Mr. Keane explained the Richardson amendment delays the effective date of this legislation until 
July 1, 2002. 
 
Senator Aguirre asked if there is a strategic reason for the 2004 implementation date.  Mr. Keane 
remarked that he did not know why this date was chosen. 
 
Shannon Slattery, Legislative Relations Coordinator, Maricopa County Public Defender’s 
Office, testified in opposition to the bill. She noted that while her office is aware of the federal 
funding issue which is tied to the bill and is obviously a factor in whether the bill will pass, the 
Office’s concern stems back to the battle over affirmative defense that came into play last year. 
 
Ms. Slattery distributed a handout entitled “Approximate Blood Alcohol Percentage” (Attachment E) 
and stated by lowering the BAC limit to .08, the Legislature is expanding the risk for people who 
may be legitimately well under the legal limit and well under the level of intoxication at the time that 
they are driving.  She noted that these people would be driving with a BAC of .05, .06 or .07 level.  
She stated that Arizona has a two-hour strict liability rule, which means that those people who may 
have been driving with a BAC of .05 may be at a .08 two hours after the fact.  She remarked that 
those people are legitimately under the limit and as long as they are showing no impairment, 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 17  January 23, 2001 

cannot be stopped for DUI.  She noted that there are two components to the DUI statute, one is 
that a person shows no sign of impairment and the other is that the person is under the legal BAC 
limit.  Both of these components must be met before a person can be acquitted of DUI.  If a person 
shows signs of impairment, and a jury finds that the person is impaired, the person can be 
convicted and will suffer the same penalties being convicted of one of these components as they 
would if they were convicted of both.  Because they are simultaneous occurrences, the penalty 
phase will be the same and they will either do a one-day, ten-day, four month stint or greater, up to 
2 to 4 1/2 years, depending on the conviction.  Ms. Slattery stated that those are things that 
separate Arizona in many ways from some of the other states that have gone to .08 but have 
maintained the “at the time of driving” standard. 
 
Ms. Slattery stated that the 1999 source book of Criminal Justice statistics contains a 
comprehensive study from 1982 – 1988 regarding the BAC as it relates to fatality injuries.  Those 
injuries occurring with a BAC between .01 and .09 began at 10.9% in 1982 and have decreased 
overall to 8% of the total number. Those injuries occurring with a BAC of .10 or more have 
decreased from 46.3% to 30% in the last 16 years.  In addition, the number of arrests that have 
occurred in the same time period, also going back to 1972, have increased by 50% or more, so the 
effect of enforcement is being felt when there is ample police protection and enforcement available 
on the streets. 
 
Ms. Slattery noted that from personal experience and also as it relates to surveys that were done 
in 1993, 1995 and 1997, most people know that there are legal limits but they do not know what 
the limits are.  She noted that there has not been a public service campaign to educate the public 
about what the legal limits mean, what they are, and how far it takes to reach the limits.  She 
remarked that a study that was done between 1993 and 1997, encompassing 1993, 1995 and 
1997, surveying 10,453 people, varying across racial and ethnic lines.  Of those, 70 – 90% could 
identify that there were limits but, fewer than 50% could correctly identify what the limits were by 
their jurisdiction.  She noted that of those who were interviewed, 32% self-reported drinking more 
than what they should have before they got behind the wheel, but only 2 –7% were stopped. 
 
Phil MacDonnell, Attorney, Arizona Wholesale Beer and Liquor Association, testified in 
opposition to the bill.  He noted that the Association favors the amendment, but would like to have 
the date extended. 
 
Mr. MacDonnell noted that this bill has been presented every year for the last eight years and has 
failed on its merits every year.  He commented that if the State waits until 2007 to enact this 
legislation it will not lose the federal highway funds.  He noted that the federal government has 
given the states ample time to establish this legislation and opined that Arizona should take that 
time to study the entire situation before acting. 
 
Mr. MacDonnell commented that DUI is a very serious offense and noted the Industry and society 
take it seriously as well.  People face shame, loss of employment and their lives are ruined with a 
DUI conviction.  He remarked that this legislation will significantly increase the number of criminals 
and it will be punishing the social drinker.  The criminal justice system will be affected with the 
need for more prosecutors, judges, and prisons.  He commented that the criminal justice system is 
not ready for this, and more time can be used to wisely plan for the results that this bill will bring. 
 
Mr. MacDonnell remarked that a direct correlation has not been proven, even though the number 
of states that have enacted the .08 BAC and the National Highway Safety Board have wanted to.  
He opined that the correlation cannot be proven. 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 18  January 23, 2001 

 
Mr. MacDonnell stated that there are ten states with the lowest DUI, Ohio, Maryland, New York, 
Nebraska, Arkansas, New Jersey, Indiana, Idaho, New Hampshire and Utah.  He commented that 
eight of those states have .10 BAC laws and two states have .08 BAC laws.  He reiterated that 
there is no correlation because .08 and .09 BACs do not cause the accidents, but anything above 
.10 BAC can result in deaths.  He opined that the State should concentrate on its efforts on the 
problem and the people who are causing the deaths as opposed to the social drinker. 
 
Senator Aguirre commented that Mr. MacDonnell stated that the date of 2007 was the cut off date.  
She questioned where this date came from.  Mr. MacDonnell replied that he obtained that figure 
from the fact sheet distributed in the Government and Judiciary Committees, where a chart is listed 
with the amounts of money the State would be losing each year.  He stated that it was his 
understanding that if Arizona enacts this legislation by 2007, the money that the federal 
government will have been holding will be given to the State. 
 
Jan Blaser-Upchurch, National Vice President of Victim Issues, MADD National Board, 
testified in support of S.B. 1089 and stated that she is a volunteer, not a lawyer or lobbyist. She 
remarked that she is a concerned citizen, and tragically, a victim of a drunk driver.  She stated that 
her husband, Sergeant John Blaser, a DPS officer, was killed in 1990 because an impaired driver 
chose to drink and drive a car.  Ms. Upchurch commented that soon after she began fighting to 
end this senseless and preventable tragedy by educating the public and working for tougher drunk 
driving laws.  She stated that she was able to be present today because of a strong desire to never 
have another person walk the same path of despair and sorrow that she did because of the 
senseless and preventable death of a loved one. 
 
Ms. Upchurch stated that .08 BAC is effective and works to save lives across the entire BAC 
spectrum.  She stated that research shows that .08 BAC laws target all drunk drivers regardless of 
their BAC level.  The risk of a single vehicle fatal crash at a .08 BAC is eleven times greater and 52 
times more than a sober driver.  She stated that virtually the entire public health and highway 
safety community supports lowering the BAC level to .08.  
 
Ms. Upchurch stated that one aspect of drunk driving that has been forgotten are the victims and 
the cost to victims and the State for health care costs, emergency care costs, loss of wages and 
loss of time from work that this bill would help reduce. 
 
Ms. Upchurch stated that Dr. Hingson and Dr. Vose have done specific studies on .08 impairment 
that dispute Mr. McDonnell’s remarks regarding the lack of evidence to correlation between the two 
BAC levels.  Additionally, Alcosensor Company that manufactures the breathalyzers has 
information that states that a 120-pound person drinking two drinks in one hour will on average 
have a BAC of .03, which is not close to a .08.  She opined that this law would not affect social 
drinkers if they drank responsibly.  She urged the Committee to support the bill. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Joseph 
Easton, Program Manager Legislation & Policy, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission; 
Janice Goldstein, Executive Director, Arizona Trial Lawyers Association; Alberto Gutier, 
Governor’s Office on Highway Safety; and Lorraine Brown, Administrative Service Officer, 
Motor Vehicle Division. 
 
Leland L. Fairbanks, M.D., representing himself, as an Arizona Licensed Family Physician, 
testified in support of the bill.  He stated that he is a resident of District 27 in Tempe and noted that 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 19  January 23, 2001 

he has been a family physician for 43 years.  He remarked that for 30 years he has been in service 
for many Native American communities.   He stated that as a commissioned officer in the United 
States Public Health Service he had the opportunity to work under several of the Surgeon 
Generals on health issues.  Dr. Fairbanks commented that Dr. Koop, Dr. Nevella and Dr. Sacher 
have identified the problem of alcohol use in our country and have been in support of this type of 
legislation.  He remarked ten out of eleven physicians he surveyed who work in the Indian Heath 
Services, Adult Services and Rehabilitation are in support of this legislation.  He explained the one 
physician who did not support the bill stated that it was because of the inadequate public 
transportation available for impaired drivers.  Dr. Fairbanks remarked that in the 43 years that he 
has been a physician, he has never heard of anyone being arrested and convicted of DUI because 
they were taking prescription medication.  He stated that the supposition that people taking 
prescription medication will be arrested based on the use of a breathalyzer is false. 
 

The motion to adopt the Richardson amendment dated 1/19/01, 2:05 P.M. CARRIED by 
voice vote (Attachment F). 
 
Senator Smith moved S.B. 1089 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 4-2-2 (Attachment 5). 
 

Senator Aguirre, in explanation of her vote, stated that she would vote aye to move the bill to the 
floor, but noted that she would like to further extend the implementation date to utilize the time to 
educate the public about the changes in the bill. 
 
S.B. 1137 – extreme DUI; alcohol concentration. – DO PASS 
 
Lou Bacchi, Research Intern, explained S.B. 1137 provides that a person with a BAC of 0.15 or 
greater who operates or is in physical control of a vehicle is guilty of driving under the extreme 
influence of intoxicating liquor. The 0.15 BAC is a recommended safety threshold recognized by 
the National Traffic Safety Board, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration and The 
Century Council, which represents the liquor industry.  
 
Leland L. Fairbanks, M.D., representing himself, as an Arizona Licensed Family Physician, 
testified in support of the bill and stated that education alone is not the solution to this problem.  He 
stated that education and legislation with “teeth” is what is needed.  He commented that S.B. 1137 
has both. 
 
Dr. Fairbanks opined that our society has reached the level where the acceptance of drunk driving 
has peaked and asked the Committee to pass the bill. 
 
David Alexander, III, representing himself, testified in opposition to the bill and remarked that 
testimony heard earlier on drug courts in the Committee regarding the costs of putting 551 people 
through the program was in excess of $5 million. He stated the projected loss of revenues to the 
State in connection to S.B. 1089 is estimated to be approximately $68 million.  He remarked that in 
a combination of lowering the minimum BAC level to .08 and the extreme standard to .15, the 
result, as suggested from the Department of Justice studies, that the administrative and 
incarceration costs is going to exceed the money that the federal government is threatening to 
withhold. 
 
Mr. Alexander noted that the war against drugs has cost well over $300 billion and 60% of the 
inmates in federal prisons and almost 50% of the inmates in state prisons are drug offenders.  He 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 20  January 23, 2001 

opined that the further criminalization of our society has hidden social costs that are enormous.  He 
remarked that he does note want his testimony to demean or lessen the pain or loss of Ms. 
Upchurch, or Senator Rios and their families from their experiences with losing a family member to 
a drunk driver.  He stated that he recognizes that our society has a problem, but opined that a 
different solution would be better than this proposed legislation. 
 
Senator Richardson announced Terry Smalley, Arizona Licensed Beverage Association was 
present in opposition to the bill. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill: Lanny 
Hair, Executive Director, Independent Insurance Agents and Brokers of Arizona; Jon Hinz, 
Director, Fairness and Accountability in Insurance Reform; Joseph Easton, Program 
Manager Legislation & Policy, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission; Janice Goldstein, 
Executive Director, Arizona Trial Lawyers Association; Alberto Gutier, Governor’s Office on 
Highway Safety; Steve Tyrrell, Executive Director, MADD; and Jan Blaser-Upchurch, 
National Vice President of Victim Issues, MADD National Board. 
 

Senator Smith moved S.B. 1137 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  The 
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 6-2-0 (Attachment 6).  

 
S.B. 1090 – juvenile justice coordinating committee; extension – DO PASS 
 
Lou Bacchi, Research Intern, explained the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Committee (JJCC) 
consists of members from all three branches of state government, state agencies and the public 
who have knowledge or experience in the area of juvenile justice.  The JJCC is required to 
supervise and assist in the implementation of the audit recommendations submitted to the 
Legislature by Deloitte & Touche, the firm retained by the JJCC to study juvenile justice issues in 
Arizona. The JJCC also coordinates and disseminates juvenile justice information between city, 
county and state agencies that deal with juvenile offenders. S. B. 1090 continues the existence of 
the JJCC until December 31, 2002. 
 

Senator Smith moved S.B. 1090 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  The 
motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-0-1 (Attachment 7). 

 
S.B. 1011 – public defenders; duties – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Joseph Belson, Research Intern, explained S.B. 1011 allows an indigent person convicted of a 
sexually violent offense to obtain representation from the public defender’s office for an involuntary 
commitment hearing. He noted that the bill was heard in Committee and was voted upon last 
week.  Mr. Belson noted that a strike everything, same subject amendment, is being offered for 
mechanical reasons.  He remarked that the Committee passed identical language in an 
amendment last week, however, after the meeting, the rules attorney determined that the 
amendment heard was a striker in disguise.  Therefore, in order to give proper notice of the striker 
amendment, the bill has been posted on the agenda as a striker. 
 
Senator Richardson commented that the striker in disguise was inadvertent. 
 
Senator Richardson announced the following people were present in support of the bill as 
amended: Shannon Slattery, Legislative Relations Coordinator, Maricopa County Public 



  Committee on Judiciary 
 21  January 23, 2001 

Defender’s Office; Dianne Sikokis; and Alan Ecker, Program Associate, County Supervisors 
Association.  
 
 
 Senator Smith moved S.B. 1011 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 

Senator Smith moved the strike everything amendment dated 1/19/01, 12:20 p.m. be 
adopted.  The motion CARRIED by voice vote (Attachment G). 
 
Senator Smith moved S.B. 1011 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 7-0-1 (Attachment 8). 

 
Without objection, the meeting was adjourned at 3:25 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 

Tracey Moulton       
Committee Secretary 

 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 
115.) 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


